
CITY OF LAKE WORTH
1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687

Agenda
Regular Meeting

City of Lake Worth
Planning & Zoning Board

City Hall Commission Room
7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 07, 2016 6:00 PM

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences:

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda: 

4. Approval of Minutes:

A. Meeting Minutes

1. August 3, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes

5. Cases:

A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants:

B. Proof of Publication:

1. 2712 Park Street

2. 10th Ave North & Boutwell Rd.

C. Withdrawals/Postponements:

D. Consent:

E. Public Hearings:

1. Board Disclosure

2. Cases:

F. Unfinished Business: 



September 7, 2016 Regular Meeting

G. New Business:

1. PZB 16-00500017: Consideration of a Conditional Land Use application at 2712 Park 
Street for a small owner-operated minor automobile repair shop within an existing 
industrial warehouse building located within the Artisanal Industrial (AI) district (PCN# 
38-43-44-16-22-000-0100). The applicant requests a continuance for the case until a date 
certain of October 5, 2016.

2. PZB #15-01400003- Consideration a Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit and 
Sustainable Bonus to allow for the construction of a Mixed-Use project to include a five 
(5) story +/- 100 guest room hotel, and associated retail/restaurant common area with 
an adjacent six (6) story +/- 158 unit apartment building.  The project will be located on 
a +/-7.31 acre parcel generally located at the southwest corner of the 10th Avenue N 
and Boutwell Road intersection in the Mixed Use West, (MU-W) zoning district.

6. Planning Issues:

7. Public Comments (3 minute limit):

8. Departmental Reports:

9. Board Member Comments:

10. Adjournment:

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with 
respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of 
the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105)

NOTE: ALL CITY BOARDS ARE AUTHORIZED TO CONVERT ANY PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP SESSION WHEN A QUORUM IS NOT 
REACHED. THE DECISION TO CONVERT THE MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP 
SESSION SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CHAIR OR THE CHAIR'S DESIGNEE, 
WHO IS PRESENT AT THE MEETING. NO OFFICIAL ACTION SHALL BE TAKEN 
AT THE WORKSHOP SESSION, AND THE MEMBERS PRESENT SHOULD LIMIT 
THEIR DISCUSSION TO THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FOR THE PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING. (Sec. 2-12 Lake Worth Code of Ordinances)

Note:   One or more members of any Board, Authority or Commission may attend and speak at 
any meeting of another City Board, Authority or Commission.

All project-related back-up materials, including full plan sets, are available for review by the 
public in the Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division located at 1900 2nd Avenue 
North.



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687

Agenda
Regular Meeting

City of Lake Worth
Planning & Zoning Board

City Hall Commission Room
7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 03, 2016 6:00 PM

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences: The meeting was called to order at 6:01 PM
Present were: Chairman Greg Rice; Vice-Chair Anthony Marotta; Cindee Brown; Tara McAlanon;
Mark Humm, Ricardo Martin.
Also present were: Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner; Maxime Ducoste, Assistant 
Director for Planning & Preservation; Brian Shutt, Board Attorney; Sherie Coale, Board Secretary.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda: 
Continuance of Agenda item G.4., PZB Project# 16-00500017, (at the request of the applicant) 
to a date certain of September 7, 2016.
Motion: C. Brown moved to continue the item, M. Humm 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous.

4. Approval of Minutes:
Motion: A. Marotta moved to accept the July 2016 PZB minutes as presented, M. Humm 2nd

Vote: Ayes all, unanimous.

A. July 6, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes

5. Cases:

A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants:
Staff and applicants were sworn in.

B. Proof of Publication:
Provided in meeting packet.
Motion: M. Humm moved to accept proof of publication, C. Brown 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous.

C. Withdrawals/Postponements:
As above in Agenda Item 3.

D. Consent:
None

E. Public Hearings:

1. Board Disclosure- No disclosures



August 3, 2016 Regular Meeting

2. Cases:

F. Unfinished Business: None

G. New Business:

1. PZB Project# 15-01400010 and 16-00500010:  A request for consideration of a Minor 
Site Plan and Conditional Land Use to allow for a +/- 6,501 square foot multi-use 
commercial retail project with drive through facilities on a+/- 39,825 square foot (+/-
.91 acre) site in the Downtown (DT) zoning district.
Staff: C Thompson provides a staff analysis of various elements of the site including 
traffic circulation patterns for refuse, fire and general population. M. Ducoste states the 
site plans meet the requirements of the code. The previous continuance granted was due 
to courtesy noticing not occurring in a timely fashion. Staff states the landscape 
buffering is heavy, and approval is recommended.

Board: G. Rice asks about 4-striped parking spaces on the southern side of the property 
and whether they are shared with CVS.
Applicant: Jeff Iravani, agent for Stateside Partners, confirms the spaces are also 
existing on the new site plan and belong to the subject property. The spaces are 
included in the parking count.
M. Ducoste states if the CVS has taken those spaces into their count, they have built 
spaces on property not belonging to them. 
Applicant: Stateside has allocated more than the minimum required parking spaces to 
the project. 
Board: G. Rice asks about egress/ ingress and if there will be a median cut on Dixie 
Hwy. for northbound traffic, signage and about the dumpster capacities.
Staff: The traffic must exit to the south, directional signage is allowed; a typical
dumpster area would measure 10x12feet. As business evolves, multiple pickups can be  
scheduled, Public Services was comfortable with proposal.
Public Comment: Michael Brennan, attorney for owner of CVS, suspects the south 
parking spots were included in the parking ratio of Eckerds in 1998. Declaration 
recorded against both properties. Declaration recorded at BK 10377 pg 1707. 
Appreciates the spaces remaining, CVS would object to the removal. Believes the 
properties were under a common ownership at some time in the past. Looks forward to 
working with the applicant.
Applicant: Jeff Iravani, is in agreement with staff approval and CRA is in support of 
the project.  There will be closures of several curb cuts at Dixie Hwy. and H Street and 
one entrance/exit from Dixie Hwy. There will be a lengthy queue area for the drive 
through. Additional landscaping with live oaks, have been added on Dixie Hwy, off the 
property, as well as a sidewalk added to the west joining the CVS sidewalk Onsite there 
is a covered walkway between the 2 buildings. Applicant shows the elevations and 
requests approval by the Board.
Board: A. Marotta concerns were alleviated over circulation after viewing the traffic 
patterns.
T. McAlanon questions whether the proposed will fit architecturally, recognizing there 
is no particular criteria that must be met, however Publix has a particular look. M. 
Ducoste responds to the style and architectural concern. Lake Worth strives to include 



August 3, 2016 Regular Meeting

compatible construction with flair but sameness is not the norm.  Scale and massing are 
similar but style and architecture different; a reason the City has its own unique style,
you know when you have reached somewhere unique and different.
Motion: R. Martin moves to approve PZB 15-001400010, a minor site plan subject to  
staff recommended Conditions of Approval in Attachment B, A. Marotta 2nd .
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous.
Motion: R. Martin moves to approve PZB 16-00500010 a Conditional Use subject to 
staff recommended Conditions of Approval in Attachment B, A. Marotta 2nd

Vote: Ayes all, unanimous.

2. PZB Project# 16-02900003: A request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a 
listing of industrial uses (that are either permitted as a conditional use or permitted by 
right) within the Industrial Park of Commerce (IPOC) Zoning District, on a +/- 4 acre 
site, in a series of existing buildings totaling +/- 60,600 square feet. 
Staff: Presents case requesting the permitted uses the structure was built for, uses 
approved under prior code were less restrictive and applicant is asking for a “blanket 
approval”. It is compatible and consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Applicant 
meets all standards in the LDR’s subject to the conditions of approval. Recommending 
approval, this is similar to a request previously reviewed by the Board for the Industrial 
Ave project.
Applicant: Ms. Christina Morrison, PA states the uses are the ones for which the 
building was constructed. Would like to turn the clock back to 2008 as the code 
changed in 2013. Light Industrial uses are the primary uses and would like to continue 
with the momentum in marketing. Original owner sold the units, Ordinance 2004-36 
annexed the subject parcel into the City of Lake Worth.
Public Comment: None
Motion: M. Humm moves to approve PZB 16-02900003 subject to staff recommended 
Conditions of Approval in Attachment D, A. Marotta 2nd.
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous.

3. PZB Project# 16-02100018: A request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a 
listing of industrial uses (that are either permitted as a conditional use or permitted by 
right) within the Industrial Park of Commerce (IPOC) Zoning District, on a +/- 42,980 
square foot site, in an existing +/- 15,540 square foot building. 
Staff: C. Thompson presents staff findings and analysis.
Applicant: Anna Cottrell- This parcel has a longer development history than the
previous project. It was developed under Palm Beach County code.  This request 
originally began as a change for two (2) businesses, but at the recommendation of staff, 
it was expanded to include the entire building. Currently for businesses like Andy and
Joe, a mom and pop business. For any of the small businesses a 3-month wait period is 
a long time to proceed through the review and business license process. The reduction 
in wait time is beneficial to both the applicant and the City. Conditions of Approval are 
acceptable.
Public Comment: None
Motion: A. Marotta moves to approve PZB 16-02100018 subject to staff recommended
Conditions of Approval in Attachment C, C. Brown 2nd.
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous.



August 3, 2016 Regular Meeting

4. PZB Project# 16-00500017: A request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an auto 
repair shop with an existing auto towing business located at 2712 Park Street, in the 
Artisanal Industrial (AI) Zoning District.
Continued to September meeting at the request of the applicant.

5. PZB/HRPB Project Number 16-03100001 a City-initiated request to consider proposed 
changes to Chapter 23, Land Development Regulations of the Lake Worth Code of 
Ordinances.
This project is in response to violations of Conditions of Approval. Assistant Director, 
M. Ducoste reviews Ordinance 2016-xxx which provides for Code Compliance to take 
violators through the process. Section 2.F. is added to the LDR’s. If you don’t follow 
the conditions of approval, then you will be subject to code enforcement action.
G. Rice agrees and hopes the public now realizes they have an avenue or solution.
Public Comment: None
Motion: C. Brown moves to recommend to City Commission for approval, A. Marotta 
2nd.
Vote:  Ayes, all unanimous.

6. Planning Issues:
M. Ducoste speaks about the Park of Commerce and is pleased with the resolution.
One staff member in HRPB has resigned and was instrumental in helping alleviate backlog of 
reviews in Historic Resources; GIS Tech position candidates have been narrowed to two (2).
Submittals have slowed a bit but still much interest, including Holiday Inn at Boutwell and 10th  

Ave N. Right of way issues with PBC are nearly resolved. G. Rice asks about HRPB 3rd

meeting, it will not happen in the month of August.
7. Public Comments (3 minute limit):

None
8. Departmental Reports:

None
9. Board Member Comments: G. Rice thanks Maxime for alerting him to the Planning 

Workshop presented at Palm Springs, it was beneficial, wished the opportunity had been there 
years ago. A. Marotta concurred. M. Ducoste states we are gathering some LDR issues and 
when there has been an accumulation of issues, we will proceed with an LDR joint workshop.

10. Adjournment: 7:34 pm

Attest: ___________________________
Greg Rice, Chairman

Submitted By: ___________________________
Sherie Coale, Board Secretary

Minutes Approved: ___________________________
Date







Law Offices of Betty C. Resch, Esq. 
521 Lake Avenue, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 

Office: (561) 533-8118       
Bettyresch@gmail.com 

             
September 1, 2016 
 
Mr. Curt Thompson 
Department for Community Sustainability 
City of Lake Worth, FL  
 
RE:  2712 Park Street, Application for Conditional Use 
 
Dear Mr. Thompson,  
 
I hope that this does not cause any inconvenience to you, but I have to ask for a second postponement 
of the hearing on this case until the October meeting.  
 
Your help in this would be appreciated. Thank you.  
 
My cell is 329-2706 if you need to call me. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
Betty C. Resch 
 
CC:  Lisa Joy 
 
 
 

mailto:Bettyresch@gmail.com


City Of Lake Worth
Department for Community Sustainability

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division
1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461

Phone: 561-586-1687 

DATE: August 30, 2016

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning Board

FROM: Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner
Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation

SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 15-01400003 and 15-00500009:  Request by Mr. Fred Griffin, on behalf of 
Mr. Hardial Sibia, Owner, for consideration of a Major Site Plan and Conditional Land Use and a 
Sustainable Bonus request, to allow for the construction of a mixed-use project to include a five (5) story 
+/- 100 guest hotel, and associated retail/restaurant common area with an adjacent six (6) story +/- 158 
unit apartment building. The project will be located on a +/- 7.31 acre parcel generally located at the 
southwest corner of the 10th Avenue N and Boutwell Road intersection (2224 10th Avenue North and 
3300 Boutwell Road in the Mixed Use West (MU-W) zoning district. This application is pursuant to 
Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 and 23.2-33 of the LDRs. 

Meeting Date: September 7, 2016

SYNOPSIS:

Applicant Mr. Fred Griffin representing Mr. Hardial Sibia, the Applicant

General Location
The southwest corner of the 10th Avenue N and Boutwell Road 
intersection (2224 10th Avenue North and 3300 Boutwell Road)

Zoning Mixed Use West (MU - W)

Existing Land Use Vacant

Future Land Use 
Designation

Mixed Use West (MU - W)

Applicable Municipal 
Code Sections

23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 and 23.2-33



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 2

Required Proposed/Existing

Lot Area 13,000 square feet +/- 318,423 square feet

Lot Width 100 feet +/- 230.53 feet

Building Height

Comprehensive 
Plan: Maximum 
30’ (not to exceed 
two stories) plus 
35 feet (max 6
stories) with 
Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program

Zoning Code: 
Maximum 30’ (not 
to exceed two 
stories) plus 35 
feet (max 6
stories) with 
Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program

58 feet, 8 inches for the Hotel 
and 65 feet for the apartment 
building.

Setbacks Required Provided

Front (10 Avenue N) 20 ft. minimum not to exceed 32 ft.

+/- 63 feet for the Hotel

Apartment Building - Over 500 
feet

Side (Boutwell Road)

10 feet in general; For lots up to one 
hundred (100) feet: Ten (10) percent 
of lot width with a minimum of three 
(3) feet. For lots wider than one 
hundred (100) feet: Twenty (20) feet 
or ten (10) percent of lot width, 
whichever is less

+/- 47 feet - Hotel

+/- 60 feet - Apartment 
Building

Side (Interior - West)

10 feet in general; For lots up to one 
hundred (100) feet: Ten (10) percent 
of lot width with a minimum of three 
(3) feet. For lots wider than one 
hundred (100) feet: Twenty (20) feet 
or ten (10) percent of lot width, 
whichever is less

+/- 67 Feet Hotel

+/- 200 feet – Apartment
Building

Rear (south property 
line)

10 feet in general; 

+/- 340 feet Hotel

+/- 50 feet – Apartment
Building



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 3

Bonus Height and 
Stories

65 feet  & six stories

58 feet, 8 inches for hotel and 
5 stories. 65 feet for the 
Apartment Building and 6 
stories

Living Area
600 square feet - 1 BR

750 square feet - 2 BR

2 bedroom, Unit A- 1225 
square feet

One bedroom, Unit B – 874 
square feet

One bedroom, Unit C – 1020 
square feet 

Accessory Structure 
Limitations

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Impermeable Surface 
Total

65% maximum 65%

Maximum Building 
Coverage

50% 17.3%

Floor Area Ratio
.90 - lots 7,500 square feet and 
greater. Total – 1.4 (.90 plus .5 for 
sustainable bonus)

.90

Parking

Hotel - 1 space per sleeping room; 2 
additional spaces for office; Apartment 
Building - 1 space per bedroom with a 
max. of 2 spaces per unit; additional 
0.5 guest space per efficiency and 1-
bedroom unit

412 spaces required. With the 
mixed use reduction, the 
required number of parking 
spaces is 309. The applicant is
providing 360 spaces.

Board Action 
Required

Approve, Approve With Conditions, Deny the Request, Continue the 
request for additional information;  

Staff 
Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Land Use and 
Major Site Plan, with conditions, to allow for to allow for 

Name and Title Initials

Project Planner Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner CT



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 4

Approved by
Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and 
Preservation

MD

Project/Property Description and Analysis:

The property is located on the Southwest corner of the 10th Avenue North and Boutwell Road 
intersection, and consists of a total of +/- 318, 339 square feet (7.31 acres). The property contains +/-
230 feet of linear frontage along 10th Avenue North, and +/- 429 feet of linear frontage along Boutwell 
Road. The property is a vacant parcel. Allowed height is limited to 30 feet and two stories, and can be 
increased with a sustainable bonus to a total of 6 floors and 65’-0” in height. The applicant’s proposal
consists of a 5 story, 100 room hotel and a 6 story, 158 unit apartment complex. The proposed hotel 
shall also have +/- 4,900 square feet of restaurant/retail space. The applicants has chosen to take 
advantage of the bonus incentive program, in designing a 5 story (63 feet in height) hotel building and a 
6 story (65 feet in height) apartment complex.

The site plan was reviewed by the Site Plan Review Team (SPRT) at their regular meeting on May 9,
2016.  The SPRT recommended a number of conditions of approval, which have been included for the 
Board’s reference.

The following analysis includes a discussion about the specific site improvements the applicant is 
proposing followed by an analysis that addresses each of the two (2) part request outlined in the project 
description.

Public Support/Opposition

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan:

The applicant’s proposal consists of a 5 story, 100 room hotel and a 6 story, 158 unit apartment 
complex. The proposed hotel shall also have +/- 4,900 square feet of restaurant/retail space.  The 
applicants has chosen to take advantage of the bonus incentive program, in designing a 5 story (63 feet 
in height) hotel building and a 6 story (65 feet in height) apartment complex.  The project will be located 
on a +/- 7.31 acre parcel generally located at the southwest corner of the 10th Avenue N and Boutwell 
Road intersection (2224 10th Avenue North and 3300 Boutwell Road) in the Mixed Use West (MU-W) 
zoning district is consistent with the following Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies, which are 
outlined below:

• Policy 1.1.3.5: Redevelopment opportunities will be maximized through use of mixed land use 
designations that permit a flexible mix of multifamily residential and compatible office uses.



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 5

The project site has a Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use West (MU-W) and a zoning 
designation of Mixed Use West (MU-W).  The Mixed Use West (MU-W) zoning designation, 
which is the zoning of the project site, is intended to “to provide for the establishment and 
expansion of a broad range of office and commercial uses, including moderate intensity and 
higher intensity commercial, hotel/motel and medium-density multiple-family residential 
development along the city's western thoroughfares. The establishment of certain uses is 
subject to conditional use review to ensure they will not create excessive problems for through 
traffic, or have a negative impact on nearby residential areas or the commercial viability of their 
neighbors”.  The Mixed Use West Land Use designation is intended to provide for a mixture of 
residential, office, service and commercial retail uses within specific areas west of I-95. The 
distinguishing characteristic of the Mixed Use West land use area is that it allows higher-
intensity uses as well as higher height limits along the City’s western thoroughfares. The 
implementing zoning district is MU-W.

• Policy 1.2.2.5: Locational Strategy for the Mixed Use West Category

The Mixed Use West land use category is intended for mapping in areas from the westernmost 
city limits eastward to I-95 and adjacent to the proposed Park of Commerce, where the existing 
land use pattern is characterized by a high proportion of land (either vacant or with marginally 
useful structures) that has a good potential for new retail, office, commercial and high-density 
multifamily development.

The applicant is proposing a new mixed use development with the potential of mixing commercial/retail, 
hotel and multifamily uses in the Mixed Use West land use category. Existing public services, including 
potable water, sewer, fire and police services, are adequate to serve the project. The mixed use nature 
shall be consistent with the Mixed Use future land use designation and this policy.

It is evident through consistency with the identified objectives and policies that the project is consistent 
with the adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection 
of public interest, as follows:

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the
uses which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate
area where located.

Staff Response: The proposed use will be in harmony with the intent of the Mixed Use West Zoning 
District for the construction of a mixed-use project to include a five (5) story +/- 100 guest hotel, and 



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 6

associated retail/restaurant common area with an adjacent six (6) story +/- 158 unit apartment building
along with the associated site improvements.

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with
existing uses in the immediate area where located.

Staff Response: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows:

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District
Current Use/            
Name of Development

North Mixed Use West (MU-W) Mixed Use West (MU-W) Gas Station

South Industrial (I)
Industrial Park of 
Commerce (IPOC)

Boutwell Business 
Center

East Mixed Use West (MU-W) Mixed Use West (MU-W) Gas Station & Motel

West Commercial Commercial Office Building

The majority of existing uses are commercial and retail in nature.  Therefore, the proposed use shall be 
in harmony with the existing mix of commercial uses in the immediate area.

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater
harm than would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other
conditional use permitted on the Property.

Staff Response: The proposed use will be compatible with the Future Land Use designation (Mixed Use
West) and may help stimulate development of the surrounding area.  The proposed use will not result in 
substantially less public benefit or greater harm than would result from a use permitted by right  

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of
when such development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan.

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use will not result in a more intensive development than that 
approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  Rather, the commercial and 
residential nature of the use shall be compatible with the planning goals, objectives and policies of the 
Future Land Use Element as identified above under Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will result in a
significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than
would result from a development permitted by right.



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 7

Staff Response: The applicant presented the Palm Beach County Traffic Division a traffic statement 
prepared by the Wantman Group, dated June 17, 2016. The applicant proposes one right turn in/right
turn out access driveway on 10th Avenue North and one full access and one right-in/right turn-out 
driveways along Boutwell Road. There will be a net daily trip count of 1,786, with a buildout projected 
by December 31, 2021. Based on their review, the Traffic Division has determined the proposed 
development is located in the Lake Worth Park of Commerce TCEA (Traffic Concurrency Exception 
Area) and meets the Traffic Performance Standards (TPS) of Palm Beach County.  

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on
local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located
with respect to collector and arterial streets.

Staff Response: The Palm Beach County Traffic Division has determined the proposed conditional use 
is located in the Lake Worth Park of Commerce TCEA and meets the Traffic Performance Standards of 
Palm Bach County.  Traffic accessing the site is anticipated to come from 10th Avenue North from the 
east and west and from the south along Boutwell Road.

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions.

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use does not include any operational features that would produce
significant air pollution emissions.

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither
extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net
public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: As a part of their Sustainable Bonus, the applicant proposes to offer a 12 foot wide 
right-of-way (ROW) road dedication along their north property line, adjacent to 10th Avenue North, for a 
right turn deceleration lane. In addition, the applicant proposes to dedicate a 30 foot wide right-of-way 
easement dedication for the Boutwell Road improvement project and along their east property line to 
address traffic flows onto and away from the subject site. 

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm
sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor
any other alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion
of public cost than would result from development permitted by right.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will be served by existing utilities in a manner that will not
result in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from a development
permitted by right such that neither extension nor enlargement is necessary as a result of the project.



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 8

6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service
beyond the capacity of those services.

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use is not anticipated to place a demand on municipal police 
or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to result from a development permitted by 
right.

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate
anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by
right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24,
Noise control.

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use (commercial/retail and multifamily) project is not anticipated 
to generate significant noise.  

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent
property in excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting.

Staff Response: The proposed lighting plan for the project is anticipated to be in compliance with 
Section 23.4-3, which requires that lighting not impact residential properties by more than one (1) 
lumens.  

Section 23.2-31: Site Design Qualitative Standards

1. Harmonious and efficient organization. 

Staff Response: All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and efficiently organized in relation 
to topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining property and the type and size of 
buildings.  The site shall be developed so as to not impede the normal and orderly development or 
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in these LDRs. The criterion has been met.

2. Preservation of natural conditions. 

Staff Response: The site shall not be disturbed in a manner likely to significantly increase either wind or 
water erosion within or adjacent to this development site.   This criterion has been met.

3. Screening and buffering. 

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing landscaping and buffering which will meet the requirements 
of the LDRs. This criterion has been met.

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. 



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 9

Staff Response: The site plan shall provide reasonable, visual and acoustical privacy for all dwelling units 
located therein. Fences, walks, barriers and vegetation shall be arranged for the protection and 
enhancement of property and to enhance the privacy of the occupants. This criterion has been met.

5. Emergency access. 

Staff Response: Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as to permit emergency vehicle 
access by some practical means to all sides of all buildings. Due to the fact that this subject site is 
bordered by 10th Avenue North to the North and Boutwell Road to the east, emergency vehicles will 
have adequate access when necessary. The criterion has been met.

6. Access to public ways. 

Staff Response: Access to public rights-of-way to the project is being provided via 10th Avenue North
and Boutwell Road.  The criterion has been met.

7. Pedestrian circulation. 

Staff Response: Sidewalks shall be provided to encompass the subject site providing pedestrian 
circulation adequate for ADA compliance as well as the safe and orderly pedestrian movement from 
parked vehicles and pedestrian access from the public right of way. This criterion has been met.

 
8. Design of ingress and egress drives. 

Staff Response: This site will be accessed from 10th Avenue North along the north property line and 
from Boutwell Road along the east property line of the site. This criterion has been met.

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. 

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing an on-site circulation pattern that will allow patrons and 
residents to enter and exit the site from Boutwell Road from the east and 10th Avenue North to the 
north. This criterion has been met.

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. 

Staff Response: There are no on-site public streets or rights-of-ways associated with this project site.  
Criterion has been met.  

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. 



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 10

Staff Response: Off-street parking will be screened by a landscape buffer of hedge material and street 
trees that provides an adequate screen from adjacent properties without creating a safety concern 
(CPTED).  The on-site circulation includes a 360 space parking area (about 140 for the hotel and 220 for 
the apartment complex) and ADA parking for the use of residents and customers of the hotel/restaurant
and the apartment complex. This criterion has been met.  

12. Refuse and service areas.

Staff Response: Refuse and loading areas shall be designed to be screened from adjacent properties so 
as to not negatively impact adjacent properties. Criterion has been met.

13. Protection of property values. 

Staff Response: This development will not have a negative impact on the surrounding properties’ value.  
The development is proposed to be architecturally compatible with the surrounding buildings and has 
met all design criteria to increase visual appearance.   The redeveloped site will have a positive effect on 
property values in the immediate area.  The criterion has been met. 

14. Transitional development. 

Staff Response: The subject site plan shall be designed to provide for a harmonious transition between 
districts. Building exteriors shall complement other buildings in the vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, 
rhythm of openings and character. This criterion has been met.

15. Consideration of future development.

Staff Response: It is staff’s professional opinion that the proposed use will be compatible with future
development in the surrounding area. The type of compact urban development proposed by the 
applicant is consistent with the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  The redeveloped 
site is expected to serve as a catalyst for investment in the Mixed Use West zoning district and for the 
area as a whole.  The criterion has been met. 

 
d) Buildings, generally.

1. Buildings or structures which are part of a present or future group or complex shall have a unity of 
character and design. The relationship of forms of the use, texture and color of material shall be 
such as to create one (1) harmonious whole. When the area involved forms an integral part of, is 
immediately adjacent to, or otherwise clearly affects the future of any established section of the 
city, the design, scale and location of the site shall enhance rather than detract from the character, 



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 11

value and attractiveness of the surroundings. Harmonious does not mean or require that the 
buildings be the same. 

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use building will be design to be compatible with the existing 
commercial/retail uses in the MU-W zoning district. Meets criterion.

2. Buildings or structures located along strips of land or on a single site, and not a part of a unified 
multi-building complex shall achieve as much visual harmony with the surroundings as is possible 
under the circumstances. If a building is built in an undeveloped area, three (3) primary 
requirements shall be met, including honest design construction, proper design concepts, and 
appropriateness to the city. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

3. All façades visible to public or adjacent property shall be designed to create a harmonious whole. 
Materials shall express their function clearly and not appear foreign to the rest of the building. 

Staff Response: The building facades meet this criterion.

4. The concept of harmony shall not infer that buildings must look alike or be of the same style. 
Harmony can be achieved through the proper consideration of scale, mass, bulk, proportion, height, 
orientation, site planning, landscaping, materials, rhythm of solids to voids and architectural 
components including but not limited to porches, roof types, fenestration, orientation and stylistic 
expression. 

Staff Response: The proposed structures meet this criterion.

5. Look-alike buildings shall not be allowed unless, in the opinion of the board, there is sufficient 
separation to preserve the aesthetic character of the present or evolving neighborhood. This is not 
to be construed to prohibit the duplication of floor plans and exterior treatment in a planned 
development where, in the opinion of the board, the aesthetics or the development depend upon, 
or are enhanced by the look-alike buildings and their relationship to each other. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

6. Buildings, which are of symbolic design for reasons of advertising, unless otherwise compatible with 
the criteria herein, will not be approved by the board. Symbols attached to the buildings will not be 
allowed unless they are secondary in appearance to the building and landscape and are an aesthetic 
asset to the building, project and neighborhood. 

Staff Response: This criterion has been met.



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 12

7. Exterior lighting may be used to illuminate a building and its grounds for safety purposes, but in an 
aesthetic manner. Lighting is not to be used as a form of advertising in a manner that is not 
compatible to the neighborhood or in a manner that draws considerably more attention to the 
building or grounds at night than in the day. Lighting following the form of the building or part of the 
building will not be allowed if, in the opinion of the board, the overall effect will be detrimental to 
the environment. All fixtures used in exterior lighting are to be selected for functional as well as 
aesthetic value. 

Staff Response: The project as proposed shall meet this criterion.

8. Building surfaces, walls and roofs shall be compatible and in harmony with the neighborhood.

Staff Response: All building surfaces, walls and roofs are proposed to be compatible and in harmony 
with the surrounding vicinity. Meets criterion.

9. "Take-out" or "pick-up" windows of retail or wholesale establishments shall not be located on a 
building façade that faces a public right-of-way, unless they are designed in such a manner as to 
constitute an aesthetic asset to the building and neighborhood. 

Staff Response:  No such design is proposed for this project. Meets criterion.

10. All exterior forms, attached to buildings, shall be in conformity to and secondary to the building. 
They shall be an asset to the aesthetics of the site and to the neighborhood. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

11. All telephones, vending machines, or any facility dispensing merchandise, or a service on private 
property, shall be confined to a space built into the building or buildings or enclosed in a separate 
structure compatible with the main building, and where appropriate and feasible, should not be 
readily visible from off-premises. 

Staff Response: No such design(s) have been proposed for this development. Meets criterion.

12. Buildings of a style or style-type foreign to south Florida or its climate will not be allowed. It is also 
to be understood that buildings which do not conform to the existing or to the evolving atmosphere 
of the city, even though possessing historical significance to south Florida, may not be approved. 

Staff Response: Meets criterion.

13. No advertising will be allowed on any exposed amenity or facility such as benches and trash 
containers. 



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 13

Staff Response: No such advertising has been proposed by this applicant. Meets criterion.

14. Light spillage restriction. The applicant shall make adequate provision to ensure that light spillage 
onto adjacent residential properties is minimized.

Staff Response: The proposal has been designed to meet this criterion.

Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program

The maximum allowable building height for the Mixed Use West district is 30 feet.  However, the 
proposed site plan and architectural plans indicate 65’ and 58’8” for the height of the proposed mixed 
use buildings.  In order to be allowed to increase the height of the buildings, the applicant has applied 
for the Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program, which allows an increase in height beyond two stories or 
an increase in floor area ratio (FAR) provided the applicant has additional improvements elsewhere on 
site that go above and beyond what is required by code.  As indicated on the Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program Application included with this submittal, the applicant is required to determine the 
total value of the required improvements and provide a description of the proposed improvements and 
the valuation of the same. 

According to Section B of the Sustainable Bonus Application, Based on a value multiplier of $5.00 per 
square foot (3 additional stories at 40,803 total square feet for the hotel and 3 additional stories for the 
apartment complex at 132,292 total square feet), the total value of required improvements shall be 
$865,475.  Thus, the total value of the required improvements will be $865,475.
In addition, according to Section C of the Sustainable Bonus Application, the applicant is proposing the 
following community benefit:

Road Dedication: $323,570: 
LED Site Lighting: 15 @ the Hotel & 26 @ the Apartments = 41x2500= $102,500
Walk Path & Landscaping @ the Lake: $83,000

Apartment Building:
Swimming Pool and accessory equipment: $80,000
Exercise Facilities for each floor (2nd through 6th): $35,000

Hotel:
Swimming Pool and accessory equipment: $80,000
Great Room: $108,000
Meeting Room: $33,000
Conference Room: $27,000

Total Value of Community Benefit: $872,070
Therefore, the applicant meets the requirements to qualify for the sustainable bonus.



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 14

Conclusion:

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made with respect to the Major Site Plan and 
Conditional Land Use requests.  The use as proposed is in harmony with the underlying zoning district 
and surrounding areas, subject to compliance with staff’s proposed conditions of approval.

CONSEQUENT ACTION: 

The Planning & Zoning Board’s decision on the Major Site Plan and Conditional Land Use will be final. 
The staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board approve the Major Site Plan, Conditional land 
Use and a Sustainable Bonus request, to allow for the construction of a mixed-use project to include a 
five (5) story +/- 100 guest hotel, and associated retail/restaurant common area with an adjacent six (6) 
story +/- 158 unit apartment building. The project will be located on a +/- 7.31 acre parcel generally 
located at the southwest corner of the 10th Avenue N and Boutwell Road intersection (2224 10th 
Avenue North and 3300 Boutwell Road)  in the Mixed Use West (MU-W) zoning district.  This application 
is pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 and 23.2-33 of the LDRs. The approval of this 
project is subject to the attached conditions of approval.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the following on the various requests: 

Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board APPROVE a recommendation to allow a Major Site 
Plan, Conditional Land Use and a Sustainable Bonus request, to allow for the construction of a mixed-
use project to include a five (5) story +/- 100 guest hotel, and associated retail/restaurant common area 
with an adjacent six (6) story +/- 158 unit apartment building. The project will be located on a +/- 7.31 
acre parcel generally located at the southwest corner of the 10th Avenue N and Boutwell Road 
intersection (2224 10th Avenue North and 3300 Boutwell Road)  in the Mixed Use West (MU-W) zoning 
district. The approval of this project is subject to the attached conditions of approval.  

POTENTIAL MOTION:

Should the Planning & Zoning Board concur with staff’s recommendation the following motions are 
recommended:

“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 15-01400003: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT NUMBER 15-01400003:  
A Major Site Plan to allow for the construction of a mixed-use project to include a five (5) story +/- 100 
guest hotel, and associated retail/restaurant common area with an adjacent six (6) story +/- 158 unit 
apartment building. The project will be located on a +/- 7.31 acre parcel generally located at the 
southwest corner of the 10th Avenue N and Boutwell Road intersection (2224 10th Avenue North and 



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 15

3300 Boutwell Road) in the Mixed Use West (MU-W) zoning district.  The approval of this project is 
subject to the attached conditions of approval.  

“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 15-00500009: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT NUMBER 15-00500009:  
A Conditional Land Use to allow for the construction of a mixed-use project to include a five (5) story +/-
100 guest hotel, and associated retail/restaurant common area with an adjacent six (6) story +/- 158 
unit apartment building. The project will be located on a +/- 7.31 acre parcel generally located at the 
southwest corner of the 10th Avenue N and Boutwell Road intersection (2224 10th Avenue North and 
3300 Boutwell Road) in the Mixed Use West (MU-W) zoning district.  The approval of this project is 
subject to the attached conditions of approval.  



PZB 15-01400003
PZB 15-00500009

Venetian Complex
Major Site Plan

Conditional Use Permit 
Page 16

LOCATION MAP

Attachments: 
A. Conditions of Approval
B. Proposed Plans

Survey
Site Plan 
Architectural Plans
Landscape Plan



\\192.168.10.245\P&Z_AGENDADOCS\00188\EXPORTED OV DOCS\ITEM 5.G.2 (4718)\SUPP_DOCS\DOCUMENTS\DOC2.DOCX

Community Sustainability

  Planning Zoning Historic Preservation
 1900 2nd Avenue North

Lake Worth, FL 33461

561.586.1687

ATTACHMENT  A

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION FOR
PZB CASE No. 15-01400003 & 15-00500009

Date of Preparation: August 30, 2016
P&ZB Meeting Date: September 7, 2016
Applicant: Hardial Sibia
Location: 2224 10th Avenue North & 3300 Boutwell Road

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 15-01400003 

MAJOR SITE PLAN 

Standard Conditions of Approval:

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 
and all other applicable Codes including but not limited to the Florida Building Code. 

2. Unless construction has commenced pursuant to a building permit, or a time extension is 
granted in accordance with Code, this application shall expire one (1) year from Planning & 
Zoning Board Approval.

3. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied.

4. This approval is for a major site plan and conditional land use pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-
30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 and 23.2-33 of the Land development Regulations (LDRs). This use must 
operate in compliance with all state and local laws that govern this use. 

5. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs 
to defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. 
Should the applicant fail to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its 
discretion, may rescind this approval and revoke all permits issued.



\\192.168.10.245\P&Z_AGENDADOCS\00188\EXPORTED OV DOCS\ITEM 5.G.2 (4718)\SUPP_DOCS\DOCUMENTS\DOC2.DOCX

Additional Conditions of Approval:

Planning and Zoning

1. In the Project Site Information tables, please correct the project name to reflect the “Venetian 
Complex” title at the time of submittal for a building permit. 

2. This development has taken advantage of the parking incentive reduction for a mixed use 
development. In order to take advantage of this incentive, the hotel portion and the apartment 
portion must have a recorded cross access agreement prior to the issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy (CO).

3. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Section 23.5-1 Signs, and shall require approval 
of a building permit application before installation.

Electric Utilities

1. Prior to the issuance of a CO, provide a recorded 10 ft. easement from the pad mount 
switchgear located on the west side of the entrance on 10th Avenue N. to the padmount 
transformer at the southwest corner of the hotel and to the transformer in the parking lot 
across the apartment complex.

2. At the time of building permit submittal, provide 4 ft. clearance around the padmount 
transformers and 10 ft. in front of them.

3. At the time of building permit submittal, relocate the monument sign that is on the south side 
of the padmount transformer on Boutwell Rd.

4. At the time of building permit submittal, provide a preliminary load calculation and voltage 
requirements for each building because the lead time for the 3-phase step down transformer is 
between sixteen to twenty weeks. Therefore, it is imperative that I have these information on 
time so I can order the transformer as soon as possible to avoid any delays in the project 
construction schedule.

5. Prior to the issuance of a CO, two bollards must be placed around each transformer.



\\192.168.10.245\P&Z_AGENDADOCS\00188\EXPORTED OV DOCS\ITEM 5.G.2 (4718)\SUPP_DOCS\DOCUMENTS\DOC2.DOCX

Public Services

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal 
Code and all other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida 
Department of Transportation (FDOT), Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Services Construction Standards and Policy and 
Procedure Manual.

2. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been 

satisfied under jurisdiction of the Department of Public Services.

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth 

Drainage (LWDD) District’s Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if 

necessary, and furnish to the City.

4. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the South Florida 
Water Management District’s (SFWMD) Engineering Department and obtain any required 
permit(s), if necessary.

5. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall install a new 8-foot wide 

sidewalk along Boutwell Road from the north property line to the south property line in 

compliance with the Public Services Department’s specifications and Policy and Procedure 

Manual.

6. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, (should the construction of off-site 
improvements not be feasible due to timing, future City planning, etc.) the applicant shall 
make a contribution to the City’s Construction Fund for the associated costs of those 
improvements to the associated right of way.

7. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall contact and meet with a

representative from the Public Services Refuse and Recycling Division to confirm dumpster 

enclosure location, accessibility and demand on property and that it is compatible with the 

requirements of the Department of Public Services. Refuse Division contact number is 561-

533-7344.

8. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall ensure the entire 
surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater 
system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and 
other improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction.

9. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an Erosion Control 

plan and indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance practices.



\\192.168.10.245\P&Z_AGENDADOCS\00188\EXPORTED OV DOCS\ITEM 5.G.2 (4718)\SUPP_DOCS\DOCUMENTS\DOC2.DOCX

10. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall fine grade and sod all 
disturbed areas with Bahia sod.

Water Utilities

• Prior to building permit application, the Preliminary Engineering Plans shall be amended as follows:

1. Please clarify the right-of-way dedication limits in the NE corner of the site at the intersection. 
Proposed water meter and backflow and DDCV shall not be in dedicated right-of-way.

2. The applicant should inquire with Palm Beach County Engineering regarding the proposed 
driveway connections into their right-of-way. Both will require permits. In particular, the 
connection to 10th Avenue North might be too close to the intersection, and also into the future 
right turn lane. County staff should be able to give guidance on these. The City will endeavor to 
assist in the application for driveway access with Palm Beach County.

3. Show the water and sewer tie-ins to existing 6” watermain and existing 4”forcemain in Boutwell 
Road, not future.

4. For hotel building, show service line and fire line connecting to the building.

5. The water meters will need to be relocated to behind the sidewalk.

• The Building Department Engineering Submittal shall include the following:

1. Complete water, sewer and drainage plans showing proposed pipe sizes, materials, conflict and 
structure sizes and elevations, as well as all pertinent site elevations.

2. Show limits of right of way restoration in engineering drawings.

3. Fireflow calculations based on a recent hydrant test

4. Drainage Calculations, and typical sections along each property line with grading showing the 
design storm runoff being maintained onsite.

5. Lift Station Calculations and engineering plans.

6. Any storm water permits from SFWMD and LWDD.

7. Erosion Control Plan with the BMPs and NPDES compliance practices.

8. All applicable City of Lake Worth notes and details



\\192.168.10.245\P&Z_AGENDADOCS\00188\EXPORTED OV DOCS\ITEM 5.G.2 (4718)\SUPP_DOCS\DOCUMENTS\DOC2.DOCX

9. In addition to these comments being addressed prior to issuance of a building permit, the 
applicant’s engineer or architect shall address the City’s Code Article VII Stormwater Utility 
Section 23.6-3, regarding Floodplain Management in the form of a Drainage Statement. This 
land parcel appears to be partially within FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map Zone A7, Community 
Panel 120192 0165 B (printed October 15, 1982). The applicant shall be required to provide a 
signed and sealed certification Drainage Statement that the standards of the subsection f) 2. (b) 
(below) are satisfied for this project if, in fact, the proposed structures are within the Flood Zone 
A7.

10. “f) 2. Specific standards. In all areas of special flood hazard where base flood elevation data has 
been provided as set forth in this section, the following provisions are required:” “(b) 
Nonresidential construction. New construction or substantial improvement of any commercial, 
industrial, or nonresidential structure shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated 
no lower than the level of the base flood elevation. Structures located in a zones may be flood-
proofed in lieu of elevation, provided that all areas of the structure below the required elevation 
are watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, using structural 
components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the
effect of buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the 
standards of this subsection are satisfied. Such certification shall be provided to the official as 
set forth in subsection d of this section.”

11. Prior to building permit issuance, reserved capacity fees for water and sewer must be paid in 
full in accordance with the current City Ordinance.

Landscape

1. Prior to the issuance of any building permit an amended landscape plan must be submitted 
showing the following:

2. The city’s minimum sizes for trees must be on plans. Code section 23.6-1 (d) (4) 

3. Provide table showing that the City’s native species requirement is meet. 

4. Code section 23.6-1 (c) (6); make adjustments to plant list as necessary.
5. Must provide genus and species for plant listed as  Viburnum - “Native Viburnum”

6. Lagerstroemia Indicia “Crepe Myrtle” must meet the City’s minimum size for trees. Code section 
23.6-1 (d) (4) 

Lake Worth Drainage District (LWDD)

Prior to the issuance of a Building Permit, the applicant shall meet with the staff of the LWDD, to obtain 
the necessary permit(s) from the LWDD.



\\192.168.10.245\P&Z_AGENDADOCS\00188\EXPORTED OV DOCS\ITEM 5.G.2 (4718)\SUPP_DOCS\DOCUMENTS\DOC2.DOCX

Palm Beach County Sheriff

Provide a photometric plan at time of building permit.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
PZB CASE No. 15-00500009

CONDITIONAL LAND USE

1. Any activities associated with the operation of this mixed use shall emit no more than 65 (db.) 
decibels and at no time be audible above daytime ambient noise levels beyond the real property 
lines of the site. The system shall be designed to compensate for ambient noise levels in the 
immediate area.

2. The subject site shall remain clear and clean of any trash or debris when retail businesses have 
closed for the day.

Approved by:

_________________________
Maxime Ducoste
Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation














































	Agenda Outline
	Item 4.A.1 - Attachment # 1 - August 3 2016 RM
	Item 5.B.1 - Attachment # 1 - Proof of Publication
	Item 5.B.2 - Attachment # 1 - Proof of Publication 2
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment # 1 - Sept. 1 2016 ltr to city for second postponement
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment # 1 - PZB Staff Report - Venetian Complex
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment # 2 - ATTACHMENT - CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment # 3 - Attachment - Sign Posting
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment # 4 - Attachment B - Proposed Plans

